#### HABITAT PROTECTION AND ECOSYSTEM-BASED MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

# Westin Jekyll Island Jekyll Island, GA

## March 6, 2017

## **SUMMARY MINUTES**

# **Committee Members:**

Doug Haymans, Chair

Chester Brewer

Jessica McCawley

Mel Bell

Tim Griner

Lt. Tara Pray

## **Council Members:**

Dr. Michelle Duval

Anna Beckwith

Chris Conklin

Charlie Phillips

Zack Bowen

Ben Hartig

# **Council Staff:**

Gregg WaughJohn CarmichaelDr. Brian CheuvrontDr. Chip CollierMike CollinsMike ErrigoJohn HadleyKim IversonDr. Kari MacLauchlinKimberly ColeRoger PuglieseAmber Von HartenCameron Rhodes

## **Observers/Participants:**

Dr. George Sedberry
Dr. Jack McGovern
Rick DeVictor
Monica Smit-Brunello
Dr. Bonnie Ponwith
Leann Bosarge
Kristin Foss
Dewey Hemilright
Brett Boston

Dr. Marcel Reichert
Rick DeVictor
Dr. Bonnie Ponwith
Kristin Foss
Erika Burgess

Other Observers/Participants attached.

The Habitat Protection and Ecosystem-Based Management Committee of the South Atlantic Fishery Management Council convened at the Westin Jekyll Island, Jekyll Island, Georgia, Monday afternoon, March 6, 2017, and was called to order by Chairman Doug Haymans.

MR. HAYMANS: We will call to order the Habitat Protection and Ecosystem-Based Management Committee. You have in front of you the agenda. Are there any additions or changes to the agenda? Seeing none, the agenda is accepted. You have been provided a copy of the minutes. Hopefully you had a chance to look them over. Are there any changes or corrections to the minutes? Seeing none, the minutes are accepted.

We have two-and-a-half hours, a little better than two-and-a-half hours, but hopefully we'll be able to get through this a little quicker than that. I am going to turn it over to Roger and Brett Boston to lead us through the rest of our agenda.

MR. PUGLIESE: Today, we want to start with the overview of the FEP section development, and, in the briefing package, you all have been provided a number of attachments, which provide some of the core focal parts of the latest fishery ecosystem plan, those being the food web and connectivity section, the full section, and the full South Atlantic climate variability and fisheries and an introduction to the managed species section, which lays out how this is going to be a blend between the species summaries as well as a very detailed access to online information for species, habitat, and fishery information through Ecospecies.

In addition, a package of the South Atlantic habitats, as well as the latest artificial reef, and we set that aside mainly because there's an artificial reef policy that's being developed simultaneously that will be available to our Habitat and Ecosystem Advisory Panel and then also added into this package, and then one component, and that's the EFH and EFH policy statements, that have been compiled and approved to date. The EFH side is the user guide, and so these are all pieces and parts of the components of the fishery ecosystem plan, as development.

What I wanted to do is to pass this over to Brett to kind of give the bigger picture of the overall fishery ecosystem plan structure, so you kind of get a context of how all of these and other parts and linkages -- There is a little bit different creature than the original FEP, and the intent, ultimately, is to have this interactive online and available, with all the linkages to other aspects and other information.

MR. BOSTON: Thanks, Roger. This document is now in that folder set with all the other documents, and thanks to Mr. Collins for getting that in there for us. We worked on this during lunch, and we wanted to get something that shows you a little bit better graphically how all of these pieces are starting to come together.

If you think about the outline for FEP II, it's going to be a whole lot of links to already existing information, as well as a lot of new stuff that's coming out and some fabulous online portals and software that are already available to us, and so I thought that we would just briefly walk through a restructure of the document, and I can answer any questions.

Between Roger and I, we can probably answer any questions about any bullet item that you see here, and then I can give you some updates on any of the specific Section 3 habitat sections that

are being provided, and so I thought we would start at the top, and so we need that usual introductory piece. We haven't started on that. We usually save those until the end.

Section 2A, Food Webs and Connectivity, for that piece there, I think you have already had the policy recommendations come forward on that, and, in addition, there is a grant that we received a little over a year-plus ago to put together an Ecopath, Ecosim, and Ecospace model for that, and that is coming along. Lots of components of that are coming together, and so that will be as part of that food web piece, but we do have that section done, as well as the AP for that.

Similarly, Section 2B, the Climate Variability and Fisheries Section, is done, and we are working on -- Well, when I say done, they're near final draft stuff, and you will be able to see some of these as we go forward, but these two sections are brand new, and they were a tremendous amount of lift and energy went into putting these together. I think the caliber of the folks working on it was just extraordinary, and the teams came together, and so I think you're going to see some really fabulous documents as well as the ability then to have some interactive toolsets to go with those for decision support, et cetera, and so those are the two biggies.

The blue and the green, by the way, is -- The green, for me, represents where we're doing the heaviest lifting in FEP II. The blue are areas where we're going to have a lot more links, and there is already existing documents, et cetera, and so our team focus is very much on those green sections, with 2A, 2B, and I am going to jump to 4, being the really big-lift areas.

Section 4A, the managed species piece, FWRI has an Ecospecies database that we're leveraging for that, and Marcel is leading that team and loading each of the species in there. It will be really nice. It's got a very brief description of the species, and I mean we're talking a paragraph, a couple of key points on the species, and then a link. You can then go as deep as you want and look at the research database, and it's all there, but we've got a simple, easy-to-use online tool. A couple of team meetings to pull that together, and the FWRI team has done a fabulous job of getting all the background research linked to that, and so we have a lot of these online tools that are coming together and starting to link.

Then, with respect to the Section 3, the habitat sections, of FEP II, those teams are in various phases of completeness. Several of the sections are completely done, and have been done for a while, and others are coming in for a landing. We hope to have most of those sections completed for your June meeting, and so that's our goal right now, and I think we'll probably see 60 percent of those done by June.

It's a big lift. I mean, you're relying on a hundred-plus scientists to give you free time and energy to redo and write these sections, and they're doing it. It's fabulous, but they also have real jobs, and finding the time to jump into the writing thing has been a challenge, and every now and then we lose a leader for a team for a new assignment or whatever, and that sets us back, and so we are actively working with the teams to bring as many of those sections into update and revision as possible. That covers the green sections, and I will just pause there to see if there is any questions about up through Section 4A.

MR. HARTIG: Brett, in the food web document, most of the verbiage in there talks about how fishing impacts populations in a negative fashion. What we have experienced in the South Atlantic, throughout the entire range, in every area that I have talked to fishermen, is there's an

opposite thing going around, where sharks are underfished. They are coming back tremendously strong, and then they've having impacts on the fishermen and the fish they catch, and so, somehow, to mention that.

Ecosystem-based management I see as a balance, and we manage fisheries at some kind of SPR level, and so, to have one of them, your top predator, that is out-of-whack with the rest of the system, it causes problems throughout the system itself, for the humans and for the fish as well, and so somehow to bring that in, I would appreciate that.

MR. BOSTON: So that apex predator emphasis.

MR. PUGLIESE: I think that's really important, and the one hope that I really have is, as we continue on with the Ecopath modeling efforts, some of those types of things can be really highlighted, how those populations come up and how you actually potentially could affect the other species, especially those interactions, and we have had those discussions about top apex predators and what the implications are, as those populations build and how they are competing with other managed council species.

MR. BOSTON: We will get that in there.

MR. BREWER: I just would like to agree with Ben, from personal experience. It's anecdotal, but personal experience is, in our area, if you're cobia fishing, you might be able to get one out of every eight cobia to the boat, because the bull sharks are going to eat it.

MR. HAYMANS: Any other questions? Okay, guys.

MR. BOSTON: Great. Then I'm going to talk about the blue areas, which are areas where you've got some documents on Section 8, a bunch of documents. For 4B, the other managed species, we have gone through a lot of back-and-forth on that, and I think, Roger, let's just talk about where you think that -- That is probably going to be a links section. I mean, the work is done.

MR. PUGLIESE: Yes, and, to a great degree, what we're going to do is draw on a lot of the existing information, through ASMFC and through many of the species profiles, especially for where we had wholly separate anadromous and catadromous species sections and other managed species. Most of those things are online, as well as the source documents for those, and so this focus of the core of the FEP is to council-based species, and the linkages are going to be to the most updated information for other managed species, and so we will have those connected and make sure they're connected.

Also, the other avenues those link is under the Ecospecies species information system. It actually goes beyond the council species, and so that actually, as it evolves, will have, hopefully, virtually the entire suite of species in the South Atlantic region, and so that can evolve as we go down the road past the first step of FEP into the future.

MR. BOSTON: I think, as we thought through this, almost every team came to the same conclusion. It's no problem to write something, but it's impossible to keep it up-to-date, and so the idea of not trying to have a paper, quote paper, document and to link to people who are doing the work that already are dedicated to keeping certain species up-to-date was important, and so I

think what you see, with the blue areas particularly, is those are more linked to existing stuff in an organized manner, so that we're not sitting there having to rewrite it.

The anadromous/catadromous was 130 pages, and to think that folks needed to rewrite that, versus point at the work that was already done, seemed to me like too much to ask for something that we already had the information on. Then it was in a much more dynamic format. Section 5 is similar. Staff has worked on that human environment, and so you've got that socioeconomic piece, and you've already got that update underway, right?

MR. PUGLIESE: Yes, and what I have done is work with staff to combine the most recent amendments, either comprehensive amendments or individual species amendments, and we're pulling together all of those individual sub-sections, and we will have those either available in one component or actually linkages that you will jump from say Ecospecies to that section description. The intent there is that hopefully that could be a living component that, as that gets updated under amendments, that that would be updated in that section, so you would have a continuous update of that socioeconomic information.

MR. BOSTON: Every team wanted socioeconomic information, and we just didn't have enough to go around, and so it was one of those things that we just said to take that. If we have it, fine, but, if we don't, let's just take it out and make that a section that we can point at. We don't have nearly enough of that kind of information to attach species-by-species. It's just not there, and so I think this is a great way of handling that.

For Section 6, you've got the two documents that you have there, 6 and 7, for your tabs, and those are -- I think this area here is another one of those areas where the policy statements and recommendations and the EFH five-year review and the threats, policies, et cetera, that's really what this is, and taking that out of a static document and making it far more dynamic and growing, as we build those sections, I think is a much better way to go, and so anything to add to that?

MR. PUGLIESE: Yes, and it was really important. These are pieces and parts that we've been involved in. Of course, the statements have been being updated and added to and new ones and additional recommendations under individual sections being developed, as well as the user guide was a really important thing for both the council and the National Marine Fisheries Service, to have that available so that it really clarifies -- It not only includes the specific designation, but then it clarifies any of the interpretation, which really helps the application of EFH in the field when they're doing permit review, et cetera, and so it was really important to have that, and it was part of this process, and it really builds and provides. We essentially have addressed the core sections of the EFH recommendations, and we will reiterate those within the sub-section, as it gets presented or as it gets added to.

MR. BOSTON: Then, Section 7, as we think about the managed areas, you've got the habitat and ecosystem atlas is there and the digital dashboard and then the South Atlantic LCC blueprint. They are doing that onshore-offshore connectivity. In fact, actually, that grant is what is funding Ecopath/Ecosim/Ecospace connectivity, and so I think that offers us a really good piece.

Then the South Atlantic has worked with peninsular Florida, and so we hope to have connectivity all the way along the east coast of Florida, as far down as we have datasets, and so we are trying to model the entire South Atlantic and not just where the LCC boundary is, which is about

Jacksonville, and so we need to go below that, and so that connectivity is happening in that blueprint model. If you haven't seen that model, I think, Roger, if you can get, maybe in the minutes, the upcoming meetings for the LCC. There will be meetings in Tallahassee, and I know there's a meeting in Atlanta, Columbia, South Carolina; Richmond; Charleston; and there's one other, and my brain just went dead on it, but I think --

MR. PUGLIESE: It's Raleigh.

MR. BOSTON: Raleigh, yes. If you can make one of those, I highly recommend it. It's a neat workshop, but to look at the tools that are there that are connecting the terrestrial estuarine areas with the deep ocean, and this is pretty neat. None of the other regions of the country are doing that, and I think this could be a cool model for us, and so I wanted to mention that one. If you can get those, and maybe if we can add, Mr. Chairman, the calendar of the upcoming workshops, and try to make one, if you can. They are pretty neat.

MR. PUGLIESE: As related, I mean part of that is also building indicators of health within the region, and a lot of those are connected to the habitats that are designated as essential fish habitat, and I mean this is a real opportunity to really ramp up how those connections and the value of those areas inshore are really driving our fisheries, and so it's really -- This is an opportunity to -- We have put a lot into the workings of this previously, in providing some of the prioritization by the essential fish habitat designations and some of the spatial information.

As we continue to go further down the road, some of the capabilities they have will provide even better abilities to refine the values of those areas, the spatial footprints, and the connectivity of the system, and so this is a real -- Again, plus the linkage to those. They still have resources, and we can continue to tap in, hopefully, to expand our work on modeling and connectivity and other partners.

MR. BOSTON: The other thing is think about the impacts that are happening onshore, way up the riverine systems, that are coming down and dumping into your estuarine areas, and I mean that's the connectivity that this blueprint offers. Then, with Section 8, research recommendations, we have asked each of the section groups under Section 3, those habitat sections, to provide us some research priorities and recommendations.

You are also getting those as you develop your policy statements inside of those as well, those research recommendations, and then building those links to both the system management plans, your research and monitoring priorities, and we've got the section-based research recommendations, the SEAMAP five-year plan, SERFS and state needs, the South Atlantic mapping strategy, the climate action plan.

Rather than trying to rewrite all of that stuff, let's build the links, with some explanation of here's where those priorities are, and I think, ultimately, having a set of research priorities will serve us well. You see there, with the 8, 9, and 10 handouts, that some of that information has already been generated for you, and so that gets us through kind of the document itself.

I think what we're building then is kind of a scaffolding to follow up on that. Once a lot of these pieces are in place, I think then that's the time where you can sit and have that discussion about what does this final product look like and then how can you guys actually take advantage and use

it. We are a bit away from there yet, until all the pieces are there, but I think that's a discussion that needs to happen.

I know you had a presentation on Lenfest, where they talked about, on the frontend, trying to gather that information, but I think it's still too early to do that, until we get all of the scaffolding together, and I think we'll create something. Then we will have the ability to say, okay, here is the thing itself, this FEP II, and here is the links and how it all fits together. Now, what is the decision support dashboard that you guys would like to see, and that's when we can ask and answer that question.

MR. BREWER: To that point, it sounds like you're getting pretty close to having that, quote, scaffold put together, and there is a lot of stuff here that I would truly love to see get moved forward. In your opinion, is it too early at this point to maybe set up some sort of an action group that might be -- Say you might take somebody like the head of the Habitat Protection and Ecosystem-Based Management AP and then put together maybe a smaller group of people from that AP and some high-level, good technical folks, so that they can then have your good work and try to give us advice as a council on an action plan.

MR. PUGLIESE: I will respond directly to that, because I think -- I didn't want to get too far ahead, but I think you're absolutely right. We are getting to the point of the frame of we need to get the core of what this FEP is, and it's a baseline. The springboard then is really into an action plan or implementation, and I would say the Habitat and Ecosystem Advisory Panel and the expertise -- The reason to keep a lot of the expertise in there is that they can provide some of that guidance, in terms of what are the different types of tools that you can use for this and what are the different capabilities that can enhance information going to assessments.

I mean, there can be kind of a tasking of where do we go from here and what are the tools available and how can we do it, and some of that is the next step, because the modeling isn't done yet, and so we can't -- Some of the tools actually are coming from that.

There is a full, whole management strategy evaluation component of Ecopath/Ecosim/Ecospace. Ecospace evaluation of multiple areas is in there, and we really almost don't even know some of the capabilities, because it's been designed at an international level, and we're pulling them in right now to be able to get to that level, and so I think we have the technical expertise from there, but then the other regional partners in the Ocean Observing Groups, in the LCC, ones that we can reach out to say, okay, how do you use these, and even our other regional partners and other councils, et cetera, and so I think we have the vehicle to take those next steps. We have the momentum started to take those next steps, and we have some people that are probably pretty motivated to help provide guidance into the future.

MR. BOSTON: My thinking on that is, right now, until you can actually touch some of these things, you probably -- They are so conceptual that you go, well, how is this going to help me? Until they are actually somewhat workable, to where you can see it, and then you'll be able to -- Everybody will be able to go, okay, now I know what I want, and I don't think we have enough to show you, other than to talk about it, and you can go, well, what does that look like? Well, it's not there yet.

MR. BREWER: Any idea of what the timeline might be? Because I would like for the council to get a little bit ahead on this and be proactive and maybe start when you think that you're getting close to the point and putting a sub-committee like this together, which would be sort of a lean, mean group, so that you're not having to have a lot of conversations about it. You still want to obviously have conversations, but it just seems to me that, if it was a smaller working group, that it might be more efficient.

MR. PUGLIESE: One other aspect, real quick, is that I think there is even more commitment from on high down to help, and so I've got a conference call directly with Jason Link and Howard Townsend next week, more on the modeling side, but on the bigger-picture things, and so there is even more willingness to be able to engage National Marine Fisheries Service at the highest level, but also getting directed at the Science Center side, because we are collaborating directly with the ecosystem head, Todd Kellison, out of the Beaufort Lab.

I think there is a number of different other partners that can really kind of move this forward in a quicker way, and to have those kind of beginning discussions and guidance to whatever the group is, whether it be the Habitat and Ecosystem or some sub-group, we can start that at the June meeting, even once you get the frame done, at least those discussions on tasking into the future and where you go. Some of that came out of the kind of line items of the implementation plan subset of the Lenfest, as well as some of the material that we've been getting directly from Jason Link and from the roadmap.

MR. BREWER: Madam Chair, can we get that on the June agenda, do you think?

DR. DUVAL: I understand where Chester is going with this, and this is something that I've been thinking about as well, some type of short and sweet implementation plan that really gets to the recommendations of the Lenfest Task Force to operationalize EBFM, and so where do we go from here, and having something that the council could start working through, understanding that the Habitat and Environmental Protection AP would want to review that and be a part of it, and so I am thinking along similar lines as Chester, in terms of the person who would lead that effort, to me, logically, would be your Habitat AP Chair and pulling like from the leads of those technical teams that have been participating, I think particularly in those chapters that have policy statements associated with them.

You just have, for each one of those sections, like seven of them or something like that, and then you have just a half-page or a page of the bulleted -- It's almost like action items, and so this is an umbrella that should inform how we move forward with ecosystem considerations and all of our fishery management plans, but that has to be small.

I mean, I still would like to dig into some of the attachments that we have here in our briefing book, in terms of the individual sections, and have a little bit of discussion on that, but absolutely I think that starting to build that vehicle for how we operationalize this and actually move it forward through our fishery management plans is something that I would like to see some time spent on.

MR. HAYMANS: Any other questions or observations? Michelle.

DR. DUVAL: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and I am not on your committee, but I was just wondering if -- I didn't know if this is an appropriate time to just talk a little bit maybe about some of the draft working sections that we saw.

MR. HAYMANS: Sure. In particular?

DR. DUVAL: Yes, and, I mean, Ben had already noted and brought up the -- You have some other hands down this way, and so I would just direct your thoughts that way, but I think the food web connectivity section, and I know that last time, in December, we just reviewed, I think, the introductions or the executive summaries of these pieces, and there was a sentence in there that was right at the beginning that I think we had asked that that be edited, having to deal with the high likelihood that fishing leads to unintended and unforeseen consequences on the ecosystem.

I mean, it seems to be very -- My impression, when I read through this, was that this was still sort like biased, a little fishing negative, and I think we need to acknowledge that, yes, fishing is one impact, but there are many other impacts that can also have negative and unintended consequences upon the ecosystem, and so I just wanted to highlight that, but thank you.

MS. MCCAWLEY: A couple of points, if we're going to start with this food web ecosystem, but I would like to note that I feel like we spent a lot of time on those executive summaries at the last meeting, and I don't feel that the comments of where we ended up on those executive summaries are in these documents, and that is disappointing to me, because I feel like we're going to approve this in June, and I don't see these comments in these documents. Just like this sentence that Michelle is bringing up, this is one of the sentences that we were hung up on and talked about in great detail the last time, and it's front and center, the second sentence, of this document.

MR. HAYMANS: Roger, do you want to address that?

MR. PUGLIESE: Yes, and the bottom line is we need to make sure what was in the executive summary translates directly into here, because they were working on a lot of the other sections. The executive summary was reviewed and done separately, and we need to make sure, because there is that one last iteration they're doing right now, and we can make sure that those translate into that and ensure that, because we had a lot -- You're right that there was a lot of discussion that was very specific direction that that be modified, but it just needs to be relayed directly into the section itself and not just in the executive summary.

MR. BOSTON: These were the working drafts that you have copies of, and we made copies of these a month-and-a-half ago, and so a lot of the edits that happened to the executive summaries have yet to be put into these, and part of that is just lead time. There have actually been changes to these documents since we had to put them in your booklet, and these teams are working pretty quickly, and so that six weeks kind of posting has caught up with this a little bit too, and so it's not excuse making, but it's just letting you know that some of that is just lag from when we get the teams to make the changes from when we get the direction, and so I'm just saying that those will be in there the next time you see them.

MS. MCCAWLEY: If you would like me to move on to some other documents in here, I can, other attachments. That was the first one. Do you want me to move on to another one?

MR. HAYMANS: Is there anything else within the food web and connectivity section?

MS. MCCAWLEY: I mean, I would like to see that entire document updated, per the direction, and some of these value statements about likelihood of fishing leading to unintended consequences and things like that removed from the document.

MR. HAYMANS: Okay. What's your next one?

MS. MCCAWLEY: Apparently, on page 32 of the document, there was a section that should be removed. That was part of what we discussed last time.

MR. HAYMANS: Which paragraph was that, the second or the third paragraph?

MS. MCCAWLEY: The last paragraph.

MR. HAYMANS: Okay.

MS. MCCAWLEY: The next one, which is Attachment 2, and so, on page 1, there are some more up-to-date numbers than this. If they need help getting that information -- This is 2009, and we have up-to-date information, if they need help updating those numbers. This is the second paragraph on page 1.

There is some discussion about black sea bass, and this was part of the discussion from the executive summary, and some of that is on page 23, and so I think that that's another spot that we noted needed to be updated. Also, in this document, and it's 23 and 24, we had significant discussion about how that sea cucumber example is not a good example, and it's not doing what this document is saying that it's doing. That is not the type of regulation that it was, and we talked about how it should be removed and shouldn't be referenced, and I see it in here.

It's on Attachment 5, which is the extensive document that's about the habitat, and so this was difficult to get through, because it was a number of pages, but there are some references in here to talking about the OFR process, the Our Florida Reefs, relative the Southeast Fisheries Coral Reef Initiative that are just wrong. We can help you update those sections. We have people on my staff that are on those groups, and this is information is -- Some of it is outdated, but some of it is just incorrect.

They have changed some of their recommendations, and so the wrong recommendations are in here. Also, our staff reviewed it, and I think that maybe the way that they're talking about coral reefs in here -- I think that maybe we would like to submit some more detailed comments about how it's listed in here, if that's okay.

DR. DUVAL: This was a difficult -- Again, this is Attachment 5, the FEP habitat section, and this was a tough one for me to get through as well, and maybe it was just long enough that I was not able to see it, but I think a consistent organization throughout that document would be helpful.

It seemed like it jumped around a little bit between habitat types and detailing where those habitats exist and their distributions in different geographic areas and talking about threats very specifically to some geographic areas. It seemed like there wasn't necessarily a consistent format where you

would go from distribution to threats to recommendations throughout that chapter, and I think that would make it much more -- It would be helpful to me, and I think it would make it easier for me to get through.

MS. MCCAWLEY: I agree with those changes, and, also, we would like to provide coral comments after the meeting to Roger. On Attachment 6, there is an appendix in there that says "state-designated nursery areas for Florida" and that is not what those areas are. Those are aquatic preserves that are designated per Florida statute, but they are not state-designated nursery habitats, and so this a mis-definition of what these areas are, and this needs to be removed or clarified about that these areas are.

DR. DUVAL: I had exactly the same questions, because, when I looked up the state regulations for those areas -- Like, for South Carolina, those are outstanding resource waters, or national outstanding resource waters, and they are not designated as nursery areas, and so I think, if the committee is considering those as nursery area surrogates, I think that needs to be very clearly stated, because, as far as I know, North Carolina is the only state that actually has a nursery area designation system in the Southeast, and I think actually along the Atlantic coast.

MR. BELL: I was just going to say, in terms of designated -- How they function, that's another matter, but it's about designation, you're right.

DR. DUVAL: That's what I think needs to be clarified. If we're considering those or if the team is considering those to function as nursery areas, I don't necessarily have a problem with that. What I have a problem with is saying that they are state-designated nursery areas when they're not actually state-designated nursery areas, and so I think I would just hope that I guess maybe the state sub-panels of the Habitat AP would provide some input on that, that's all.

MR. PUGLIESE: Yes, and some of this got pulled in specifically working with National Marine Fisheries Service in the interpretation of state-designated areas, that idea that if a state designates some areas as special designation that they would serve as essential habitat areas of particular concern, and this got rolled under the interpretation of areas that may be significant in nursery grounds for managed species, and that was how it kind of got crafted under this designated, but they're not formally designated.

You are correct. The way the terminology in the front -- They're not formally designated by the state with that term, but they are special resources, and what was picking up was that idea of looking at special resources that are in the nursery zone, and I think it may be a terminology issue, because this is something that we've been working with National Marine Fisheries Service to be able to pull in.

DR. DUVAL: I just think that if that is something that has been a conversation with the Fisheries Service, then I think there needs to be some communication with the state agencies that are actually doing the designations of those resource areas, so that there is not misinterpretation of what those areas actually are, because I can see this causing a lot of stakeholder confusion that they are actually nursery areas, state-designated nursery areas, within particular states when that is not actually the case.

I mean, North Carolina has outstanding resource waters as well, which is noted in that chart of the designated nursery areas, but I just think that we need to be very, very clear about what is state-designated and what is not and how, maybe under the EFH mandate, the Fisheries Service is considering these resource use areas and those designations, because some of those are really coming more from EPA.

MR. HAYMANS: Go ahead, Jessica.

MS. MCCAWLEY: I'm done. That's all I have, based on everything we have edited so far and reviewed, but we will come up with the coral ones. We have a specific list that Lisa Gregg is working on, and so we will provide that after the meeting, and we are just cleaning it up right now. Thanks.

MR. HAYMANS: Anybody else? Michelle.

DR. DUVAL: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I did really want to commend folks on the -- This is Attachment 3, but the managed species example summaries. I think keeping those to the halfpage, if possible, is great, and I really liked the ones that I saw, and so kudos to the group, and I know that Marcel is involved with that, that are doing the editing on those. I mean, it seems like that's going to be a great tool for folks to use, in terms of getting a very easily-accessible and easily-digestible chunk of information about our managed species, and so I really like that. Thank you.

MR. BOSTON: That piece, by having that short, but behind that -- Recognizing that there is a volume of great information behind those summaries that are inside of that system is it's all there, and so that team did work extremely hard to come up with that very tight format, and we are cranking away on that. We're bringing that in for a landing, if we can, for the June meeting, right, Marcel? Okay.

DR. DUVAL: I have a lot of notes. Attachment 4, the artificial reef habitat section, I had a question. This is actually the bottom of page 1, the last paragraph on the bottom of page 1, that first paragraph, where it says the total area of South Atlantic states ocean and estuarine bottoms permitted for manmade reef development, at present, is 210,000 acres, and it says this small percent area of shelf and natural hard bottom is managed by the South Atlantic Fishery Management Council.

It was unclear to me -- It sounded like what this was saying is that those offshore artificial reefs are managed by the South Atlantic Fishery Management Council, when that is not the case, and I just want to make sure that there is no confusion there, because I think all the states have artificial reefs that are in federal waters, and so I just want to make sure that the phrase is clear that the council is managing the bottom and not any constructed reefs.

MR. PUGLIESE: Yes, and I think there may be just a word in there wrong, because a small percentage of the shelf and natural hard bottom managed by the South Atlantic Council is -- I mean, that would be the whole area is managed and those constitute footprints that lie within that bottom habitat, and so I think just dropping the "is" out of it, because this was our artificial reef people that put this together, and so I don't think they intended it to mean that, and so I think that

it's just that it's a small portion of what is managed under our Coral, Coral Reef, and Live Hard Bottom Habitat FMP.

MR. BELL: Just for clarification, and Michelle is right that the council has authority, management authority, and jurisdiction in that area, but the reef programs are individually managed by the states who hold the permits, and so that just needs to be -- I think she's right to just kind of clear up the wording there.

MR. PUGLIESE: Okay. What I just wanted to do is just touch on a couple of things beyond where I started with in the description of the different sub-sections and connections to other activities, the first being the model development activities, and I kind of highlighted already one of the key things that I wanted to mention, and that is that we are coordinating directly with and are bringing in Howard Townsend into the modeling group, and hopefully we can get some resources to help enhance that whole ecosystem, Ecopath and Ecosim, with the latest Ecopath/Ecospace capabilities that have really been developed and applied through the Ecopath international organization.

That technical capability is not available through the base system, but, with their input, we can craft this so it's going to better meet the council needs and a lot of what we really see, right from the beginning, as some of the spatial connections and capabilities that will enhance that, and so that's something that is ongoing.

We have ramped back up the development of the frontend of the Ecopath/Ecosim, so that we can get the oceanographic modeling capabilities through some of the other partners, such as Ruoying He's shop out of North Carolina State, to be able to align with those, and so this is kicking back up into a higher gear, and hopefully, with some of the additional support and input from our partners with National Marine Fisheries Service, it will actually move faster and be able to enhance and be able to provide some of these things we're talking about into the future and what are some of the tools we need and what are the capabilities. The sooner we get some of those things further down the road, the sooner we can get some of those answers I think we need.

One of the other aspects that I think Brett already mentioned is our partnership with the Landscape Conservation Cooperative and our refining the blueprint and some of the indicator capabilities. Specifically, what I'm hoping is that, under some of these discussions, the marine indicators get even further refined. Again, some of that is going to get specifically informed by the model capabilities, and so, again, it's tied somewhat to our next generation of the ecosystem modeling activities. It will be informed, expanded, and enhanced, but it is moving, and so we are advancing.

A couple other aspects that I think I mentioned before is ongoing collaboration with partners in the region. There are a number of different proposals that have been submitted to NASA and S-K that are intending to build some specific ecosystem reports on individual species, and hopefully, if some of those get funded, we will actually have -- Again, one of the tools that was identified is providing guidance or input on where we are in some fairly active tools, and one of those, specifically the NASA proposal, is pretty extensive, in terms of what the capabilities would be into the future for being a collaborator, being able to integrate a lot of our key managed species into that, if they actually are able to fund and provide those capabilities.

Some of those things are directed through National Marine Fisheries Service for creation, but the resources, in our region at least, have not been applied, and so hopefully some of this partner capability or opportunities for collaboration into building that actually gets funded and we can see some of those move into and provide some more capability in our region.

Those are a couple of the key things that I really wanted to touch on. The other one, I've already gone into enough, and I think, if you read the frontend of the managed species, it talks not only about the nice, succinct components for the species, but then that ecosystem species, online species habitat, life history, and fishery information system that really is going to provide immediate access, where you can query by species and query by groups, to get everything from the EFH to the allowable catch limits to life history and even, in the next generation, tolerances by species. They are pulling together some of that information. Some of our partners at FWRI are actually doing the queries of the system.

That is a tool that is going to be -- Ecospecies has stepped up a lot more of our capability for FEP II than originally identified, and it really will provide a lot as we go, and the limitation on that really is going to be wherever we want to think, because it has the capability to expand to provide a lot more species-specific and habitat-specific information.

Those were the major ones that I wanted to say. We are advancing, and it's going to support everything we're talking about, about moving us forward, moving the system further down the road, and those are some of the things that I think we can get into even more detail as we get to the next step of looking at the FEP and then the connections to these systems. That is the main things that I wanted to highlight on the modeling tool development at this stage.

DR. DUVAL: I am not on the committee, but, Roger, how far along do you think these modeling components will be in June? When can we start like pushing buttons?

MR. PUGLIESE: We'll be further along. I think what we can do is -- I would like to at least plan on being able to highlight kind of the structure of where the system is, on what constitutes the forage-based and the whole system that we're looking at, but it's going to take -- The dedication right now is I would like to say that we're going to be closer to actually seeing that by the end of year. Then I think we're actually going to have a fully-functional model, is what I'm looking at.

I think we will have the structure, and we will have enough guidance that then the other components, such as the oceanographic models, can be tailored to align with that, because that's kind of what we're doing, is being able to -- Once we have the structure laid out, then those can be designed, and some of it is unknown.

That's why we're trying to engage the international group, because that connection of other model capabilities is something that comes with that next generation that isn't available publicly right now, but they have done it already. By just this little nominal amount that we're trying to get them to participate, we will actually be able to merge those in a better way, both the spatial information and being able to load a lot of the information fairly quickly. Things could happen a lot faster once we get to these next steps, and so there is some decisions being made in the next couple of months that will really advance us, and so then we'll know how far we go beyond there.

DR. DUVAL: Just to follow up, one of the things that I noticed in I think the climate variability working chapter was recommendations for scenario planning as opposed to MSE, just given the level of information that we have here in the region, and so will this model allow us to do scenario planning? I mean, I think that's one of the things that would probably help the council tremendously in some of the decisions that we have to make in regards to tradeoffs, and so in terms of making decisions about even stock assessments or where you're setting catch limits and the type of management approaches that you're taking.

MR. PUGLIESE: Yes, and that is exactly what the intent of this -- That's why we're trying to get the latest capabilities, because I think if we get this functioning at the level that they have that capability now, more realistic scenario development, and Ecosim is something that -- Our SSC has already seen some of that capability, with what they've done in the Gulf of Mexico on grouper, and so they already have at least gotten a teaser, in some of those kind of -- That is even before this next generation.

Yes, the intent is that the scenario planning is part and parcel of this and climate-informed capability is intended also to be part of this, and so, yes. The answer is that's exactly where we're going. We need to pin down this first structural section and get the commitment to get the newer capabilities on Ecospace integrated, and the idea of doing scenarios is exactly what the intent of this -- Beginning to do that exactly, the idea of different scenarios and where you could go and really understand the connectivity. So much new information has been done since they did the forage modeling capability that we're going to take leaps and bounds beyond what that last forage model is, because of the assessments that have been completed and the information that is available.

DR. DUVAL: Because I would certainly like to see some scenarios where what is happening if we have rebuilding of shark populations that are then eating up groupers and king mackerels off of people's lines, and we have lionfish that are eating up all of the little baby groupers and other important species that form the basis of our recreational and commercial fisheries, and so I would like to be able to have that capability sooner rather than later.

MR. PUGLIESE: Yes, and I think what we may be able to do is to begin to lay out, and this is part of that discussion about the needs and the tools and the capabilities, lay out things that are not necessarily on the final product of this model, but at least lay out how you can do that, so then you can understand, as this gets finalized, the kind of capability you would really be able to have. That may be something that will move us forward.

We talked about already getting that kind of before the SSC and to be able to understand that, and they could give guidance on how do we use those, but this may be something that really we need to get at least, if nothing else, a strawman while the final one is advancing, so we understand where you can go with this, because that's exactly what -- That's why I responded back to Ben when he was talking about sharks. These are the things that will provide us that kind of understanding, because you crank this thing down.

Under the forage model, that is what we were doing, because it was supposed to look at big climate shifts. If you reduced the population by 50 percent, where did you see things start to go haywire, and that's exactly the kind of stuff that this type of capability is supposed to provide.

DR. DUVAL: Because I think that would be a great way to take the anecdotal information that we're getting from fishermen on the water and plug it into something that would show us how the conditions that folks are seeing on the water have -- How those impacts spread out throughout the system. Thanks.

MR. HAYMANS: Any other comments? Okay, Roger.

MR. PUGLIESE: Okay. That's all I had on the ecosystem models, and I think what we were going to move into was we've been provided the Draft South Atlantic Regional Action Plan, and the presentation has been provided to everyone by Bonnie, and I guess we can go forward with that presentation on the -- You have been provided both the regional action plan for the Gulf, the final version, and also the South Atlantic draft.

DR. PONWITH: Thank you. In the briefing book, the actual draft document has been made available, and we are seeking input from the council on that. The target date that we set for receiving input is the 25<sup>th</sup> of March. If the council needs a little bit more time than that, that can work too, but we're really eager to have good solid input from your folks, to make sure that, number one, did we get everything in there that we really think needs to be in there, are there things in there that you think are superfluous, that is biting off too much.

We really broke the document down into two categories, things that we think, by adjusting our workload, we can do under existing funding levels. We also have a category of activities that we think we need to be attentive to, but would require an increase in resources to be able to do, and those are two core bins to put that information in.

If you had views, within those two bins, of areas that you think are particularly important, that would be valuable, and so what I've done is to -- I won't go through the entire document, obviously. It's fairly extensive, and I think there are sixty-seven actions that we included in that document, but what I have done is just put together a quick overview, to give you the context for this document and kind of help us walk through some of the key findings in it.

Again, the thing that's inspiring this regional action plan was the generation of the NOAA Fisheries Climate Science Strategy that was released in the fall of 2015, and one of the things that that national-scale plan called for was for each of the regions to pull together a regional action plan of how we would carry out the goals and objectives of the national science strategy at a more regional ecosystem scale.

Our very first step was, again, to start by holding a regional workshop, where we pulled together people from the fishing industry, academic scientists, people from the state agencies, the federal agencies, to get together and kind of talk through what are some of the regional issues and what kind of information would the fishing industry or folks who are involved in management and policy decisions need to be better prepared to make climate-informed decision making. This is a rough sketch of the regional action plans. These are sort of the council jurisdictions and EEZs where this similar work is being carried out.

The regional action plan for the Southeast, what we were after is to seek input on this draft plan. Again, to take a look at the list of the actions, binned up by can afford now or need more money, to give us input of are we missing things from that action list or are there things in that action list

that you think should be scrapped and why, and then any input you have on the staging, scheduling, or your sense of priorities, based on information you think that would make your job easier. Ultimately, the other thing is we have a list of partners, and this is very heavy towards the federal side. If you think there are other partners that we should take into consideration for those actions, we would be eager to hear your input on that.

To recap, the NOAA Fisheries Science Climate Strategy basically broke down this problem into seven interdependent sort of scales of work, starting from the bottom and dealing with science infrastructure, to deliver the type of information, and going up from there and looking for status, trends, and early warnings that we're seeing, based on the data that we collect.

The next category is information on mechanism of change. The next category, going up again, is robust projections into the future, and that gets back to that conversation that you were just having about being able to generate scenarios. Then the next category up from that is focusing on adaptive management processes, given that these will be projections, and then Number 2 is the robust management strategies. Then, ultimately, sort of the icing on that cake, is to be able to do climate-informed reference points for the species for which we are responsible.

If we go to the next slide, starting from that bottom and working our way up, these are just some examples, in shorthand, of some of the actions that we felt were particularly important in the South Atlantic Council region, starting with things like strategic planning for climate science, building and strengthening the capacity, the modeling capacity and the data collection capacity, the infrastructure, including the capabilities and the days at sea we have for at-sea data collection, strengthening the partnerships, and certainly I am happy to say that citizen science made its way into this plan in multiple places. Again, these are kind of shorthand examples of the types of issues that came up as actions.

Under the status, trends, and early warnings, again, we are getting at making sure that we have the baseline data that we need to be able to do the modeling it would take to do the early warning work, generation of an ecosystem status report. We have an ecosystem status report for the Gulf of Mexico, and we expect the first update of that ecosystem status report will be rolled out probably within two months, and it will give us a feel for, once that baseline version came out, where we're going from there. We have found it to be an enlightening process, and we think that it would be good for this region as well. Then things like an early warning toolbox.

If we go to the next slide, these are some of the examples of the activities that we had under the information on mechanisms of change. One of the most important priorities that we see in the Gulf of Mexico, as well as the South Atlantic, is the need for the vulnerability assessments for priority species, and so this is the climate vulnerability analysis, and it's looking at a combination of the exposure of a species to the impacts of climate change and then the susceptibility of the species to that exposure and using some sort of a matrix analysis for that species of what kind of reaction could that species experience, due to the combination of those two things.

Another thing that was brought up on this was looking at research and monitoring on sea level rise, ocean acidification, looking at coral reefs as one example system, but I think the system in here that they also raised was the very important estuarine systems that are the nursery habitat for so many of our species.

If we go to the next slide, that fourth category is robust projections into the future, and, again this gets back at some of the conversations that Roger was talking about moments ago, and that's the predictive modeling, setting those models up to be able to run scenarios and help us understand what kind of impacts we might be faced in a dynamic marine ecosystem, the application of existing models and maybe the amendment of existing models to answer some of these questions, and then building a standardized modeling toolbox, to make it easier to run these scenarios, going into the future.

If we go to the next slide, the adaptive management process is really helping us to quantify management tradeoffs under climate change scenarios, again being able to do that scenario work and look at the implications, in terms of tradeoffs, and continuing to include environmental covariates in stock assessments. We're doing it to some degree, and we really should be doing it to a greater degree, because it has explanatory power in some of the cycles and trends that we're seeing in these assessments.

Then also to strengthen the dialogue, and that gets back, again, to citizen science, and it gets back to the anecdotal information, what are you seeing on the water, as a leading indicator of what we'll be looking for in trends in the data, when we finally get to a point where we can process those data.

The robust management strategies is that second-to-last category, and we are interested in being able to apply management strategy evaluations to do quantitative simulation analyses of some of these vulnerabilities, as well as the scenario planning that we have generated, to be able to define management objectives collaboratively in the face of a changing environment and awareness of what impacts that has on the species. Then, ultimately, ecosystem considerations, to be able to look at that across the system, as we look at changes within that system.

Then, finally, the last category is the climate-informed reference points, to be able to consider climate and sort of the direction that some of these forcing functions are going as we develop reference points for our species or species complexes, to improve our ability to include climate consideration in the designation of EFH and HAPCs, and then also to be able to look across regions and do lessons learned from among those other regions, because recall that these are all being done at an ecosystem level. We think that there is going to be a great opportunity to leverage by looking across these systems.

Really, the next steps is for us to be able to obtain input from the South Atlantic Council and other folks who are reviewing this document and be able to incorporate that into the draft and be able to release that draft as a final product sometime around the summer of 2017.

Then I will just close, in the next slide, by putting up the acknowledgements. The work on this plan was really the lift of many hands within the Science Center, within the Region, within the council. It all got its start at that climate change workshop, and we were really grateful for the representation we had there of council staff and council members and people from the fishing community, and so it was really invaluable. That's a summary of where we are, and we do look forward to hearing from you, and I would be able to answer any questions if you have them.

MR. HAYMANS: Are there questions? Roger.

MR. PUGLIESE: I really appreciate it, Bonnie. I do appreciate it building from previous work. I think that was really important. To me, those were some things, I think, that were excellent, that it did build from the previous activities. It also integrated our connections with the LCC and some of the activities that we are moving forward.

I think there is some concern about timelines and moving forward. I had a couple of questions that I was going to ask. We had talked about moving forward with the climate vulnerability assessments, and I understand we have the opportunity to build on the previous ones. Is there a timeline for actually accomplishing that? I think Jason had said that it is in process, and so I was just curious if we have any kind of a gauge of how soon that may move forward.

DR. PONWITH: We have some folks going through and looking at regions that have already completed theirs, and kind of going to school on that. Of course, the first question was are we smarter to try and merge the Gulf and the South Atlantic and tackle these climate vulnerability assessments in the collective, with input from the respective regions, or are we better off doing them sequentially, and the sense that I'm getting from the folks who have gone before is, for heaven's sake, do them sequentially, that they're complicated and they take a lot of input. That was their advice.

At this point, I think we're going to heed that advice. Right now, because the Gulf regional action plan was completed just half a year ahead, and it's out in its final format already, it's likely that will go first. What I would say is that's kind of a blessing and a curse. I would like to see the South Atlantic forging on.

Because of all the things we're going to do, I think that product is going to be one of the things that matters the most to the council and to the fishing community, because it helps them understand which of these species should we really be worried about and keeping an eye on, and I think it's going to be invaluable, not only identifying those species, but why? What signals should we be watching within these populations?

That is the curse side of it, and the blessing part of it is that we can go to school on the Gulf of Mexico. I would love to have South Atlantic participants or observers to be able to watch how that process goes, so that, when we do start the South Atlantic, it's a tighter, better -- It's just a more refined process because of that.

DR. DUVAL: Thanks for the presentation, Bonnie. I definitely appreciate everything that went into that, I was appreciative, I guess, of the honest accounting of the capabilities that you guys have and the information that we have in the region.

Obviously that's a great thing, and I'm glad you guys are honest about what your ability might be, in terms of moving forward on some of these things, but it also -- Obviously it also causes some concerns, in terms of how you are reprogramming staff or trying to maybe realign existing responsibilities, I think, to incorporate some of these priorities that you have indicated that you could do with level funding. I don't know, and maybe -- I have a couple of questions. I think my question in there is over what timeframe do you see going through that exercise of staff realignment, maybe, for lack of a better phrase, or I don't know.

DR. PONWITH: I think that's a legitimate question, and the thing that I want to be careful about is that we are a finite resource, just as each of the state agencies are, just as each of the NGOs are, just as the fishing community is, and you just can't squeeze blood from a turnip. We want to be really careful that we are doing a good job of meeting our obligations for providing science advice and science products and not end up spreading ourselves so thin that we are actually missing deadlines on stuff that got there first, and so we will be attentive to that.

That attentiveness will measure what we can get done with this. I think the answer to your question will be more clear when we finish the climate vulnerability analysis, because I think what that will do is tell us that these are species that we could be seeing, potentially, changes in the population density and population distribution now, based on our new understanding of their vulnerability to perturbations or long-term trends or shorter-term cycles in the system, and that kind of information, I think, will be enormously informative in helping us to set correct priorities and scale them according to the resources we have available.

Understanding what needs to be done, based on the long list of what is in the plan, versus what we can do right now, pretty much showed a pretty clear gap, and that is an opportunity to look for innovation as a solution, leveraging partnerships as a solution, but I don't think there should be a strong worry about robbing Peter to pay Paul, because we do need to remain attentive to the basics, to those core responsibilities. Does that answer your question?

DR. DUVAL: Yes, and I think one of the -- I had a couple of specific questions. First, I appreciate the shout-out for citizen science, and I think that we can certainly accomplish some of these objectives through that vehicle, and I think one of the things that I was going to draw some attention to was actually under Objective 3, the adaptive management processes, Number 13, fishermen observations, citizen science, and establishing more formal methods for scientists and managers to learn about ecosystem and climate-related changes by senior fishermen and other stakeholders who are on the water frequently.

I think that certainly that's something the council take a role in. I mean, we had a little bit of conversation about that earlier this morning, and we have talked about how we could try to wrap our heads around that, and we have some examples for how we could move forward with that, via similar things that the Mid-Atlantic Council has done with their fishery performance evaluations, and so I guess I might just say that would be one of my comments, that I don't think that it would take a huge increase in funding to move forward on something like that, and I think it's probably incumbent upon the council to play a significant role in that regard.

Then I would also say that it also follows directly on Number 14, which is increased dialogue between scientists and managers to enhance that collaborative process, and so I think having a dialogue between scientists and managers, in terms of what types of observations do the scientists need that they feel are most important to their work to provide science in support of management, I guess I would say. That's just one thing.

Then the other question was I saw that coordination of coast-wide fishery-independent surveys, I guess, had been initiated, and so this was under Objective 6, Number 40, baseline data tracking change, discuss options for coordinating fishery-independent survey approaches, and so I am assuming that this is building on some of the work that we have tried to do already.

Your staff, in conjunction with council staff, hosted the deepwater survey design workshop. Myself and the Chair of the Mid-Atlantic Council sent a letter in August of last year, I think to you and Dr. Karp, recommending that, given these different policy directives that the Fisheries Service had come out with, the climate science, the climate adaptation, the climate policy, and the ecosystem policies, that now is an ideal time to look at these things, and so I was just curious if I guess maybe the level of conversations that you all have had with your counterparts at the Northeast Fisheries Science Center and how we could start moving forward on that.

DR. PONWITH: I think that that's a particularly important one. The emphasis on fishery-independent data isn't going to diminish. It really is crucial, particularly to help us tease out the difference in patterns in landings relative to the abundance and distribution of these animals in their natural habitat, to be able to take market-driven patterns out of the picture and tease that out.

More and more, I think we're learning the lesson, abundantly clearly, that stopping a survey at a geopolitical boundary is not necessarily the smartest thing, and the other thing is that I view the pressure for days at sea for fishery-independent data collections to be growing more competitive and not less, and it is with every beat of our hearts, the stroke of the engines, of the NOAA fleet of research vessels, and those ships are getting older. It takes a lot of lift to recapitalize a fleet that is aging, and recognizing that that's a core tool. It's not the only tool for long-term data collection, but it certainly is sort of a backbone for the suite of tools we have for those data collections.

I anticipate the demand for days at sea, whether it be done on a NOAA ship, a state partner ship, on fishing industry vessels, will grow, and we're going to have to be really smart about how we construct those data collections so they are leveraging work that serves not just this council, but the Atlantic seaboard, really.

MR. HAYMANS: Anyone else? Mississippi.

MS. BOSARGE: Thanks. I was just going to say that you did ask about whether to keep them separate, the Gulf and the South Atlantic, the two plans, and I have read the Gulf one in detail, and I have skimmed the South Atlantic one here. I would say, especially now that I have read both of them, they are pretty different, really, what is predicted to happen in the Gulf versus the South Atlantic, and I was actually surprised at that, and so I say, yes, let's definitely keep them separate.

I think one thing that maybe we do work very closely on is there are certain species that we do manage jointly, that we have mixing zones that kind of flow back and forth, and so maybe, in both plans, if we could have some information on what is predicted there, what changes might we expect in that area, I think that could be helpful to both councils.

The regional assessment section, I found that extremely helpful. I encourage everybody to read that. That's only just a couple of pages of the forty-three, and I think that's helpful even in the most basic sense, like just for those of us that are out on the water all the time. As we are starting to see certain things change, it kind of explains why we're seeing what we're seeing and that, I would think, everybody around this table is thinking ahead and always wondering what's going to change in the future. That will help us to anticipate what is coming our way.

One thing that did kind of worry me, and it touches a little bit on what Michelle said, and you mentioned it a couple of times, is it almost seems like -- I hate to say science is working in a bubble

here, but I only saw that one objective in both the Gulf and South Atlantic plan that mentions the fishermen and interactions with the fishermen, to see what's happening. I mean, I think that is an asset that you don't want to pass up. That is a man that's on the water, day-in-and-day-out, whereas, on the science side, it takes a lot of money and resources to get out on the water.

I hope that, maybe even through ideas like what Tim had earlier, with the portal, and I thought that was a great idea. You probably would have to flesh through it and see what's usable for science and what is not, but maybe that could feed directly into a data stream that goes into the assessment process to at least read through, to understand first-hand from the guys on the ground maybe some long-term changes that they're seeing.

The only thing that really concerned me, Bonnie, was that, as they describe the different changes that they expect to see, I feel like they only told us the negative impacts from them. For example, when they start talking about coral, they say, oh my gosh, we're going to have bleaching and coral is very sensitive to changes in temperature, but the flip side of that is even a study that they referenced in the South Atlantic one, and it was off of North Carolina, and, granted, it was back in the late 1990s, but where they were starting to see tropical sponges that they had never seen in that area before, due to these changes in temperature.

I don't feel like that is portrayed in the document that, okay, yes, we may see a loss of some habitat down here, due to it, but hopefully we're starting to see a responsive change in the other direction as well, and the same thing with the mangroves. They say the mangroves are going to expand farther northward, and that you're already seeing that somewhat in Florida, and that's extremely productive.

I guess my only concern is, if we have that kind of negative drive behind this whole climate change, I don't want that to transfer over into the assessment side and we only have negative impacts and we're not taking into account maybe some of the more productive and positive impacts that could come as we see these changes, and so that was my spiel. Thanks.

DR. PONWITH: That was a really astute observation, and, in fact, to that very point, which is a very astute point, is part of the reason we want to do these climate vulnerability analyses, and part of the reason that the collection of fishery-independent data is emphasized is those are the things that will help us be able to differentiate between a stock getting thinner and thinner versus the distribution of that stock drifting longitudinally and us mistaking what we think is a thinner stock for the fact that, instead of measuring at really the center of the highest density, we are now measuring at the trailing edge of the distribution of that stock.

Those are the kinds of the -- They are very, very simple things, but they're easy to miss if you don't have a good, comprehensive plan for trying to interpret, and I also appreciated the comment about the web portal, and I had some further discussions on that, and one idea is, if we don't -- If it's too much to expect every member of the fleet to dump their data into the public domain, which is an awful lot, we could create something just as simple as a website for commercial and for forhire and for private recreational and then, going down the different columns, the different species that are harvested, and something as simple as a three-level code of what direction are you seeing the abundance of fishes that are at the very borderline of being legal. Are you seeing more of them this year, about the same as normal, or fewer of them?

Doing that longitudinally across the length of the South Atlantic's jurisdiction, so you don't just get this isolated -- Someone said, well, anecdotal information is you're seeing one little piece of a giant quilt here, but we get the big picture. Something that simple could be absolutely invaluable, and that's an example of something that would be really valuable to give us leading indicators of the directions that these stocks are going.

My answer to that question is that, if you look through that list and you see things that you don't think should be there, cross them out and send that to us and explain why you think that we should ditch them, but, really, the tougher thing is, if you see a gap, where it's a missed opportunity, I am really eager to see those, and if you can think of concrete ways that the industry or the council can be contributing to what is a way bigger problem than I can tackle myself, we are certainly willing to entertain that, and so thank you.

MR. HAYMANS: Thank you. For the record, Mississippi equates to the Chair of the Gulf Council, Leann Bosarge. Sorry to be too familiar. Ben, go ahead.

MR. HARTIG: One of the things that, in the limited reading I've done about corals, and certainly going back in the geologic record is going to give you some information on what happened when sea level rose before, and so one of the striking things that I saw was that you would have expected the corals to march right up the coast, and they did not do that.

Now, why did they not do that? Right now, we're seeing the increase in cold-water eddies in the areas where you would have thought that these corals could have gone, and maybe these current patterns changed, to the point where there is so much cold water that these corals can't move north, because they are pinned by the number of eddies that they hit, and so some of this, going back in geologic time -- I was amazed at the amount of work that had been done on south Florida and the ancient reefs that are there, and so some of that could help in this regard as well.

MR. HAYMANS: Are there comments or questions or suggestions? Roger.

MR. PUGLIESE: Just one of the timing -- The request was made that I think that we have to have any of our comments in by March 25, and so, for council members, if we're going to provide an overall comment. We have also distributed to this our climate writing team, and it was a short timeframe.

I was hoping to get maybe something on the table here, but not quite enough time, but we want to be able to fold some of that, as well as our Habitat and Ecosystem Advisory Panel, and so to fold that into something that we can provide directly to you. Now, we do have our Habitat and Ecosystem Advisory Panel meeting, but it's not until May, which is going to kind of miss this timeframe, but we may be able to still provide some additional follow-up information at that point.

MR. HAYMANS: Anything else on Item 3? Okay. Roger, do you want to move on?

MR. PUGLIESE: That just brings us into Other Business or into Other Habitat Issues. Just a couple of things that I think we're looking for is some direction to staff and to our partners -- An issue came up on a potential international conservation of the sargassum, and there had been a request, and actually a formal letter has been sent to the council, requesting that our Habitat and

Habitat Protection and Ecosystem-Based Management Committee
March 6, 2017
Jekyll Island, GA

Ecosystem Advisory Panel be briefed on some of the activities of the Sargassum Sea Commission, I guess is the new organization.

We had a preliminary briefing by George Sedberry at not the last, but I think the one before, advisory panel on the development of potentially some positions or advancements, and we had a number of people, such as Pat Halpin and others, that may have some information on that, and another aspect is that, with a lot of the explosion of sargassum in the Caribbean, there has been movement and discussion of use in biofuels and biofuel technology in many of the islands.

I think most of that is focused toward moving it from the beaches and processing that material, but I think it was putting it in that loop of discussion, and so I think, with that request, that our advisory panel will look at it, and that's kind of the normal process for an issue like this. I think we're looking to have a recommendation that the AP be briefed and provide input to the council on this issue.

MR. HARTIG: Just to follow up just a little bit on that Caribbean experience, it went into some of the bays and actually killed the seagrasses that they had. There was so much of it that it stopped the light from penetrating and created anoxic conditions, and so be a little careful about how you go forward with that.

MR. PUGLIESE: Yes, and it's a real interesting position, because you've got this event there, but then you also have a paucity of sargassum on the Atlantic coast, and a lot may be, again, back to this understanding of really some of the current shifts in our region and what those really mean, and that may be what is driving the pushing of some of that habitat toward the Caribbean and to the islands, versus it making it up the normal route up through the Atlantic, and so, yes, I think that potentially could be an issue, especially with it killing some of those systems in those island areas.

Also, I guess I had noted it, but I guess I would assume that there is a desire to have a council position provided on this drafting a letter? If there is just direction to staff, that's probably good enough to move forward and make sure that we combine a lot of the information we've got from some of our partners, as well as the council members, and then work with our Chair to provide that.

DR. DUVAL: Yes.

MR. HAYMANS: Okay. Anything else to come before this committee? I think we've walked through pretty much each of the items. We had no Other Business. Seeing none, we adjourn.

(Whereupon, the meeting adjourned on March 6, 2017.)

Transcribed By: Amanda Thomas April 6, 2017

# **2017 COMMITTEES**

#### ADVISORY PANEL SELECTION

Chester Brewer, Chair Mark Brown, Vice-Chair Chris Conklin Michelle Duval Ben Hartig Charlie Phillips Staff contact: Kim Iverson

#### CITIZEN SCIENCE

Chris Conklin, Chair
Ben Hartig, Vice-Chair
Zack Bowen
Chester Brewer
Mark Brown
Michelle Duval
Tim Griner
Charlie Phillips
Robert Beal, ASMFC Representative
Staff contact:
Amber Von Harten/John Carmichael

#### **DATA COLLECTION**

Mel Bell, Chair
Doug Haymans, Vice-Chair
Anna Beckwith
Zack Bowen
Mark Brown
Tim Griner
Wilson Laney
Ben Hartig
Robert Beal, ASMFC Representative
Staff contact: John Carmichael

#### **DOLPHIN WAHOO**

Anna Beckwith, Chair
Doug Haymans, Vice-Chair
Zack Bowen
Chester Brewer
Mark Brown
Chris Conklin
Roy Crabtree
Tim Griner
Jessica McCawley
Mid-Atlantic Liaison, Tony DiLernia/Dewey
Hemilright
New England Liaison, Rick Bellavance
Staff contact: John Hadley

#### EXECUTIVE/FINANCE

Michelle Duval, Chair Charlie Phillips, Vice Chair Chris Conklin Ben Hartig Doug Haymans Jessica McCawley Staff contact: Gregg Waugh

#### **GOLDEN CRAB**

Ben Hartig, Chair Charlie Phillips, Vice-Chair Chris Conklin Tim Griner Jessica McCawley Staff contact: Brian Cheuvront

# HABITAT PROTECTION AND ECOSYSTEM-BASED MANAGEMENT

Doug Haymans, Co-Chair
Wilson Laney, Co-Chair
Mel Bell
Chester Brewer
Tim Griner
Jessica McCawley
LT Tara Pray
Robert Beal, ASMFC Representative
Staff contact: Roger Pugliese- FEP
Chip Collier – Coral/CEBA

## **HIGHLY MIGRATORY SPECIES**

Anna Beckwith, Chair Mark Brown, Vice-Chair Ben Hartig Charlie Phillips Staff contact: John Hadley

Dr. George Sedberry Dr. Marcel Reichart Dr. Jack McGovern Rick DeVictor Michigan, Smit-Brundlo Dr. Bonnie Ponwith Leann Bosarge \*Kristen Foss Dewey Hemilvight

# 2017 COUNCIL MEMBERSHIP

#### **COUNCIL CHAIR**

Dr. Michelle Duval
NC Division of Marine Fisheries
3441 Arendell Street
(PO Box 769)
Morehead City, NC 28557
252/808-8011 (ph);
252/726-0254 (f)
michelle.duval@ncdenr.gov

#### VICE-CHAIR

Charlie Phillips
Phillips Seafood/Sapelo Sea Farms
1418 Sapelo Avenue, N.E.
Townsend, GA 31331
912/832-4423 (ph); 912/832-6228 (f)
Ga capt@yahoo.com

Robert E. Beal Executive Director Atlantic States Marine Fisheries Commission 1050 N. Highland St., Suite 200 A-N Arlington, VA 20001 703/842-0740 (ph); 703/842-0741 (f) rbeal@asmfc.org

Anna Beckwith 1907 Paulette Road Morehead City, NC 28557 252/671-3474 (ph) AnnaBarriosBeckwith@gmail.com

Mel Bell
S.C. Dept. of Natural Resources
Marine Resources Division
P.O. Box 12559
(217 Ft. Johnson Road)
Charleston, SC 29422-2559
843/953-9007 (ph)
843/953-9159 (fax)
bellm@dnr.sc.gov

Zack Bowen
P.O. Box 30825
Savannah, GA 31410
912/398-3733 (ph)
fishzack@comcast.net

W. Chester Brewer 250 Australian Ave. South Suite 1400 West Palm Beach, FL 33408 561/655-4777 (ph) WCBLAW@aol.com

Mark Brown 3642 Pandora Drive Mt. Pleasant, SC 29466 843/881-9735 (ph); 843/881-4446 (f) capt.markbrown@comcast.net

Chris Conklin P.O. Box 972 Murrells Inlet, SC 29576 843/543-3833 conklinsafmc@gmail.com

Dr. Roy Crabtree
Regional Administrator
NOAA Fisheries, Southeast Region
263 13th Avenue South
St. Petersburg, FL 33701
727/824-5301 (ph); 727/824-5320 (f)
roy.crabtree@noaa.gov

Tim Griner
4446 Woodlark Lane
Charlotte, NC 28211
980/722-0918 (ph)
timgrinersafmc@gmail.com

Ben Hartig
9277 Sharon Street
Hobe Sound, FL 33455
772/546-1541 (ph)
mackattackben@att.net

(Continued)

# 2017 COUNCIL MEMBERSHIP (continued)

Doug Haymans
Coastal Resources Division
GA Dept. of Natural Resources
One Conservation Way, Suite 300
Brunswick, GA 31520-8687
912/264-7218 (ph); 912/262-2318 (f)
doughaymans@gmail.com

Dr. Wilson Laney
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service
South Atlantic Fisheries Coordinator
P.O. Box 33683
Raleigh, NC 27695-7617
(110 Brooks Ave
237 David Clark Laboratories,
NCSU Campus
Raleigh, NC 27695-7617)
919/515-5019 (ph)
919/515-4415 (f)
Wilson Laney@fws.goy

Jessica McCawley Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission 2590 Executive Center Circle E., Suite 201 Tallahassee, FL 32301 850/487-0554 (ph); 850/487-4847(f) jessica.mccawley@myfwc.com LT Tara Pray
U.S. Coast Guard
909 SE 1st Ave.
Miami, FL 33131
305/415-6765 (ph)
tara.c.pray@uscg.mil

Deirdre Warner-Kramer
Office of Marine Conservation
OES/OMC
2201 C Street, N.W.
Department of State, Room 5806
Washington, DC 20520
202/647-3228 (ph); 202/736-7350 (f)
Warner-KramerDM@state.gov

# **COUNCIL STAFF**

# **Executive Director**

√Gregg T. Waugh gregg.waugh@safmc.net

Deputy Director - Science & Statistics

John Carmichael
john.carmichael@safmc.net

**Deputy Director - Management** 

√Dr. Brian Cheuvront

brian.cheuvront@safmc.net

**Fishery Scientist** 

Myra Brouwer myra.brouwer@safmc.net

**Financial Secretary** 

Debra Buscher deb.buscher@safmc.net

Admin. Secretary /Travel Coordinator

Cindy Chaya cindy.chaya@safmc.net

Fishery Scientist

Chip Collier chip.collier@safmc.net

Administrative Officer

Mike Collins mike.collins@safmc.net

**Fishery Biologist** 

Dr. Mike Errigo mike.errigo@safmc.net

Fishery Economist

John Hadley Iohn.hadley@safmc.net **Public Information Officer** 

Kim Iverson kim.iverson@safmc.net

Fisheries Social Scientist

Dr. Kari MacLauchlin kari.maclauchlin@safmc.net

Purchasing & Grants

Kimberly Cole kimberly.cole@safmc.net

Senior Fishery Biologist

Roger Pugliese roger.pugliese@safmc.net

Fishery Citizen Science Program Manager

Amber Von Harten amber.vonharten@safmc.net

**SEDAR Coordinators** 

Dr. Julie Neer - <u>julie.neer@safmc.net</u> Julia Byrd - <u>julia.byrd@safmc.net</u>

Cameron Rhodes

# SAFMC MARCH MTG DAY I MONDAY

ast Name First Name		Email Address				
	fisherynation.com	bhfisherynation@gmail.com				
Abeels	Holly	habeels@ufl.edu				
Ballenger	Joey	ballengerj@dnr.sc.gov				
Becker	Emily	beckere@dnr.sc.gov				
Bell	Mel	bellm@dnr.sc.gov				
Bianchi	Alan	Alan.Bianchi@ncdenr.gov				
Binns	Holly	hbinns@pewtrusts.org				
Bonura	Vincent	SailRaiser25C@aol.com				
Brennan	Ken	kenneth.brennan@noaa.gov				
Brouwer	Myra	myra.brouwer@safmc.net				
Brown	Mark	capt.markbrown@comcast.ne				
Buckson	Bruce	bruce@buckson.net				
Byrd	Julia	julia.byrd@safmc.net				
Clarke	Lora	lclarke@pewtrusts.org				
Conklin	Chris	conklinsafmc@gmail.com				
Dale	David	david.dale@noaa.gov				
DeVictor	Rick	rick.devictor@noaa.gov				
Dunmire	Leda	ldunmire@pewtrusts.org				
Erwin	Gwen	gwen.erwin@myfwc.com				
Estes	Jim	jim.estes@myfwc.com				
Foss	Kristin	kristin.foss@myfwc.com				
Foster	Dean	dfoster@pewtrusts.org				
Geer	Patrick	pat.geer@dnr.state.ga.us				
Gibson	Shane	shanegibson24@yahoo.com				
Godwin	Joelle	joelle.godwin@noaa.gov				
Gray	Alisha	alisha.gray@noaa.gov				
Guyas	Martha	martha.guyas@myfwc.com				
Hadley	John	john.hadley@safmc.net				
Hartig	Ben	mackattackben@att.net				
Helies	Frank	frank.helies@noaa.gov				
Hudson	Rusty	dsf2009@aol.com				
Iverson	Kim	kim.iverson@safmc.net				
Kratowicz	Tony	tkratowicz@comcast.net				
Laks	Ira	captainira@att.net				
Lee	Jennifer	Jennifer.Lee@noaa.gov				
MacLauchlin	Bill	billmac@charter.net				
Mahood	Bob	rmahood@mindspring.com				
Mehta	Nikhil	nikhil.mehta@noaa.gov				
Neer	Julie	julie.neer@safmc.net				
Potts	Jennifer	jennifer.potts@noaa.gov				
Pulver	Jeff	Jeff.Pulver@noaa.gov				

Raine	Karen	karen.raine@noaa.gov
Records	David	david.records@noaa.gov
Roberts	Claire	claire.roberts@gulfcouncil.org
Rock	Jason	jason.rock@ncdenr.gov
Sedberry	George	george.sedberry@noaa.gov
Stephen	Jessica	jessica.stephen@noaa.gov
Stillman	Karolyn	karolyn.stillman@noaa.gov
Takade-Heumacher	Helen	htakade@edf.org
Waters	james	jwaters8@gmail.com
Williams	Erik	erik.williams@noaa.gov

wcblaw@aol.com pugliese roger dolphinwahoo@gmail.com sandorf scott scott.sandorf@noaa.gov

chester

brewer

Wes	jessica s	Susan	Gary	Bill	Dean	Kristin	Leda	Robert	Lora	david	Brett
Wolfe	stephen	Shipman	Morgan	Ке;;у	Foster	Foss	Dunmire	Crimian	Clarke	bush	Boston
wwolfe@goldenisles.news	jessica.stephen@noaa.gov	susanshipman@att.net	gmorgan@clsamerica.com	FKCFA1@hotmail.com	dfoster@pewtrusts.org	kristin.foss@myfwc.com	Idunmire@pewtrusts.org	rcrimian@tnc.org	Iclarke@pewtrusts.org	davidbush@ncfish.org	brettboston@groupsolutions.us
3011 Altama Ave., Brunswick,	on file	on file	450 Rosedale Dr. Satellite Beach, FL	On File	on file	on file	on file	on file	on file	on file	on file
			NGO		NGO		NOG	NOG	NGO		
Local newspaper	NMFS	Alumnus	CLS America, Inc.	Commercial fishing rep		FWC				NCFA	presenter, habitat ap